
 Page 1 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 15, 2022 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, December 15, 2022, 
beginning at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the 
following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council 
may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney 
on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. Pursuant to Texas Government Code 551.127, one or more 
members of the governing body may appear via videoconference call. The presiding officer and a quorum of the City 
Council will be physically present at this meeting. 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  
 
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form 
and give to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a place 
for comments.  
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email City Secretary Erin Day at 
eday@lucastexas.us by no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain the 
person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. 
Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
 Roll Call 
 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 5510415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 
1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Items of Community Interest. 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

Public Hearing 
 
3. Hold a Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the 

rezoning request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property owner, 
to rezone 4 parcels of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential R1.5 acres to 
Residential 1 acre, situated in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 
acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, and the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 
acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a 
single vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
4. Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 1, 2022 City Council meeting. (City 
Secretary Erin Day) 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
5. Discuss the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) intersection improvement 

project located at FM 1378 at FM 3286 (commonly referred to as the Bait Shop 
Intersection).  (Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele) 

 
Executive Session 
 
6. Executive Session:  
 

As authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session to deliberate the appointment of a member to the 
Board of Adjustment. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas 
Government Code.  

 
7. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 
 
8. Adjournment. 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on December 9, 2022. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Erin Day, City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to City Secretary 
Erin Day at 972.912.1211 or by email at eday@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

December 15, 2022
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Citizen Input.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 02City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

December 15, 2022
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Items of Community Interest.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 03 

 

 
 

 

City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 

December 15, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 

 

Agenda Item Request  

 

Hold a Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the rezoning 

request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property owner, to rezone 4 parcels 

of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential R1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated 

in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, 

and the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres. 

 

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 

B. Public Hearing 

C. Take action on Ordinance 
 

Background Information  

 

This lot is currently zoned Residential 1.5 acres (R1.5) and the applicant is requesting a change in 

zoning to Residential 1 acre (R-1). The tract is 25 +/- acres of land and is shown in the 

Comprehensive Plan to be planned for R-1. 

 

At the November 10, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting the request was 

recommended as a denial by a unanimous vote.  Pursuant to Section 14.02.063 of the City Zoning 

Code, the Applicant is appealing the decision of the Commission.  

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  

 

1. Public Notice  

2. Location Map 

3.         Depiction 

4.  Legal Description 

5.  Zoning Checklist 

6.         Land Use Map 

7.         Proposed Concept Plan 

8. Ordinance #2022-12-00963 

  

Budget/Financial Impact  

 

NA 

 

 

 

 

 



Item No. 03 

 

 
 

 

City of Lucas 

City Council Agenda Request 

December 15, 2022 
 

Recommendation  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended not approving the zoning request. However, 

staff recommends approval of the requested zoning change because it is conformance with the 

comprehensive plan.   

 

Motion  

 

I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2022-12-00963 approving the rezoning 

request made by Sudhir Sakaria with 3R Land Properties L.C., property owner, to rezone 4 parcels 

of land on the north side of Parker Road from Residential R1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated 

in the Lewis P. Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, 

and the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres. 



 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, will conduct a Public Hearing 
on Thursday, December 15, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, 
Texas to consider an appeal to the City Council regarding a negative recommendation given by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for a request for a change in zoning from R1.5, Residential 1.5 
acres, to R-1, Residential 1-acre, on a parcel of land described as follows: 
 

SITUATED in the Lewis P. Turner survey, abstract no. 901 and in the J. Gray survey, abstract no. 349, 
being a survey of the 12.576 acre tract described in a correction deed from Nelda Rae Owens and Myrna 
Marie Godier to 3R Land Properties, L. C., recorded as clerk's file no. 2022000078425 of the Official Public 
Records of Collin County, Texas and a part of the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. 
Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean Kennedy, to 3R Properties LC, recorded in volume 5024, page 1136 of the 
Collin County deed records, being described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 BEGINNING at a 5/8-inch iron pin found at the northwest corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the corrected plat of Kirkland Estates West recorded in volume 10, page 74 and volume 
A, page 244 of the Collin County plat records; 
 THENCE North 88°55'12" East, with the north line of said 12.64017 acre tract, 298.73 feet to a 2.5-
inch iron pipe found at the northeast corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the northwest corner of said 12.576 
acre tract; 
 THENCE South 89°34'53" East, with the north line of said 12.576 acre tract, passing at 290.04 feet a 
3/4-inch iron pin found and continuing in all, 296.30 feet to a point at the northeast corner of said 12.576 acre 
tract; 
 THENCE South 00°23'01" East, 1863.33 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin set in the north right-of-way line of 
Parker Road(FM 2514), at the northeast corner of the 0.1715 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 
20150922001201110; 
 THENCE North 84°05'06" West, with the north right-of-way line of said Parker Road and with the north 
line of said 0.1715 acre tract, passing at 298.10 feet, the northwest corner of said 0.1715 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the 0.1458 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 20151125001484280, continuing with the 
north line of said 0.1458 acre tract, in all 603.38 feet to an iron pin found with aluminum cap at the northwest 
corner of said 0.1458 acre tract; same being in the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of 
said Kirkland Estates West; 
 THENCE North 00°13'55" West, with the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of said 
Kirkland Estates West, 1797.66 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 25.130 acres. 

 
Those wishing to speak for or against the above item are invited to attend. If you are unable to attend 
and have comments, you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club 
Road, Lucas, Texas 75002, or email eday@lucastexas and it will be presented at the hearing. If you 
have any questions about the request, please contact Joe Hilbourn at jhilbourn@lucastexas.us.  

mailto:kent@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


LOCATION MAP: PARKER ROAD DEVELOPMENT 





                                                                 Legal Description  
(3R Properties, Parker Road) 

 
SITUATED in the Lewis P. Turner survey, abstract no. 901 and in the J. Gray survey, abstract no. 349, 

being a survey of the 12.576 acre tract described in a correction deed from Nelda Rae Owens and Myrna 
Marie Godier to 3R Land Properties, L. C., recorded as clerk's file no. 2022000078425 of the Official Public 
Records of Collin County, Texas and a part of the 12.64017 acre tract described in a deed from Phillip E. 
Kennedy and wife, Margaret Jean Kennedy, to 3R Properties LC, recorded in volume 5024, page 1136 of the 
Collin County deed records, being described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 BEGINNING at a 5/8-inch iron pin found at the northwest corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the corrected plat of Kirkland Estates West recorded in volume 10, page 74 and volume 
A, page 244 of the Collin County plat records; 
 THENCE North 88°55'12" East, with the north line of said 12.64017 acre tract, 298.73 feet to a 2.5-
inch iron pipe found at the northeast corner of said 12.64017 acre tract and the northwest corner of said 12.576 
acre tract; 
 THENCE South 89°34'53" East, with the north line of said 12.576 acre tract, passing at 290.04 feet a 
3/4-inch iron pin found and continuing in all, 296.30 feet to a point at the northeast corner of said 12.576 acre 
tract; 
 THENCE South 00°23'01" East, 1863.33 feet to a 1/2-inch iron pin set in the north right-of-way line of 
Parker Road(FM 2514), at the northeast corner of the 0.1715 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 
20150922001201110; 
 THENCE North 84°05'06" West, with the north right-of-way line of said Parker Road and with the north 
line of said 0.1715 acre tract, passing at 298.10 feet, the northwest corner of said 0.1715 acre tract and the 
northeast corner of the 0.1458 acre tract recorded as clerk's file no. 20151125001484280, continuing with the 
north line of said 0.1458 acre tract, in all 603.38 feet to an iron pin found with aluminum cap at the northwest 
corner of said 0.1458 acre tract; same being in the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of 
said Kirkland Estates West; 
 THENCE North 00°13'55" West, with the west line of said 12.64017 acre tract and the east line of said 
Kirkland Estates West, 1797.66 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 25.130 acres. 
 









MH
R2

R2
R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2 R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2

R2
R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

R1.5

HIGHLAND
PARK

BROCKDALE
PARK

CITY
PARK

NORTH TEXAS
WATER TREATMENT

PLANT

ED

VC

O
AK

W
O

O
D

OLD
STACY

MCMILLEN

LAGO

VISTA EAST

A
R

B
O

R
R

ID
G

E

MARCHMONT

TEXAS

ASHTON

OSAGE

FO
R

D

LAKEVIEW

PA
R

K
E

R

B
E

LLA
VISTA

C
H

U
LA

VISTA

TRAVIS

STALLION

RAMSAY

D
R

AIN

DEL
MAR

COOK

SNIDER

SANTA
MARIA

M
A

LA

AUDUBON

BARRANCA

GRAHAM

K
E

N
ZI

E

DE SOTO
ST

IN
SO

N

C
LE

A
R

W
AT

E
R

BOXWOOD

FRANCESCA

GRAND
CANYON E

D
M

O
N

S
O

N

SHEPHERDS

CREEK

FO
R

ES
T

G
R

O
VE

TA
Y

LO
R

SANJUAN

HILLCREST

SEMINOLE

C
O

U
N

TR
Y

C
LU

B

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
A

D
88

9

PO
RT

RO
YALE

STACY

RANCHVIEW

PARKER

GREGORY

SHILOH

D
ILLEH

AY

ROCK RIDGE

AS
C

O
T

HIGHLAND

ESTATES

BURKE

LEEWARD

DEER

WINDY

POINTE

LAV
O

N

WINDOMERE

EA
R

L

S
H

A
D

Y

BEECAVES

HICKS

CORINTH
CHAPEL

ROCK C
REEK

ESTA
TE

S

EASTFORK

LI
N

C
O

LN

BLONDY JHUNE

LAKEWAY

W
EL

B
O

R
N

FORD

SA
W

M
IL

L
H

O
N

E
Y

S
U

C
K

LE

KING

SKYVIEW

BAYSIDE

AZTEC

ES
SE

X

BARTON
CREEK

SAGEBRUSH

LEANDER

TE
R

R
Y

MEADOW
GLEN

LINDSEY

REAGENEA

E
N

C
H

A
N

TE
D

FM
 1378

M
C

C
R

E
A

R
Y

MERION

WINNINGKOFF

BALTIMORE

R
E

D
B

U
D

ZILKER

W
R

IG
H

T

K
IM

IN
G

R
A

M

LE
W

IS

PLE
ASAN

T
ANGEL

CORAL REEF

KARM
A

TENACITY

ARTHUR

COUNTY
ROAD

888

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

PA
R

K

W
EB

B

O
R

R

H
O

G
G

E

STAR
GAZE

LI
M

E

ELA
IN

E

BLONDY JHUNE

M
O

S
S

R
ID

G
E

STANFORD

IRENE

H
A

R
T

S
H

A
D

Y
G

R
O

V
E

STONY
OAK

HO
LBRO

O
K

C
O

U
N

TR
Y C

LU
B

BLUE
MOON

MARK

OAK
BROOK

CAPROCK

STACY

SAINTJAMES

DU
M

O
NT

LUCAS

CURTIS

C
O

U
N

TY

R
O

AD
 317

BL
UE

W
AT

ER

STACY

H
A

R
V

E
S

T

LAMAR

ROLLINGRIDGE

BELVEDERE
PARK

OVERBROOK

STETSON
DRAKE

SEIS

LAGOS

FAW
N

H
O

LLO
W

CR
ES

TL
AN

D

PARKVIEW

JORDAN

WINNERS

SC
AR

LETT

ERIN

O
A

K
H

IL
L STARPOINT

A
N

D
Y

S

BR
O

O
KH

AV
E

N

M
AY

O
R

N
ATH

A

WILTSHIRE

BO
IS

D
 AR

C

M
E

AD
O

W

WESSEX

ABER
D

EEN

BRIARBROOK

STONECREST

BARRANCA

SAMANTHA

GLENWOOD

BARTON
SPRINGS

SOLITUDE

C
A

M
D

E
N

WINDWARD

OAKMONT

RATHBONE

GIDDINGS

BREEZY

DAY

B
R

Y
C

E

S
E

AT
TL

E
S

LE
W

LA
C

AN
TE

R
A

ESTATES

V
IS

TA
R

ID
G

E

KERILAN

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

ES
TE

LL
E

H
O

M
E

M
ID

D
LE

TO
N

FOREST
GROVE

ESTATES

R
IO

 B
R

AV
O

S
U

N
VA

LL
E

Y

STIR
LIN

G
BOERNE

H
E

D
G

E
M

A
P

LE

TOULOUSE

SILENTSHORE

FOREST
GROVE

R
EM

IN
G

TO
N

M
A

R
Y

LEE

BRIANNA

WOODMOOR

PA
R

K

BETHANY

MORNING
MIST

M
A

R
G

A
U

X

ROBERT
SENDER

INDIAN

LE
MON

ABBY

BASTROP

SAN
CARLOS

PINEWOOD

SANTIAGO

SAINT PAUL

GLENCOVE
HIGHLAND

A
S

H
FO

R
D

LOGAN

H
ID

D
EN

PA
SS

BELMONT

YOUNG

H
E

N
D

R
IX

WYNDHAM

EL
IZ

AB
ET

H

PA
LO

 D
U

R
O

CHRISTIAN

H
AM

ILTO
N

NORTH

STAR

CAM
INO

REAL

EAST

FAIRBROOK

COMBINE

ASHCROFT

ST
O

N
E

G
LE

N

CRESTVIEW

W
ATER

 O
A

K

SC
O

TT
S

BL
U

FF

CHAPARRAL

BR
AN

D
IN

G
IR

O
N

NO
RT

HF
O

RK

K
E

N
TU

C
K

Y

POOL

GALWAY

PA
R

C
H

M
A

N

JESSICA

IN
SP

IR
AT

IO
N

WESTON

COYOTE

DUMONT

LESLIE

INDIGO

D
O

VER

RANCH
HOUSE

GREENHILL

EN
C

LA
V

E

ROCK RIDGE

BASTR
O

P

HAYDEN

DUNAWAY

BELLA
R

AE

BEVERLY

TIMBER

W
ATER

FALL

HUFFINES

P
E

N
N

IN
G

TO
N

SILVER

M
APLE

CREEK
VIEW

ASBURY

CLARKE
SPRINGS

CADDO
LAKE

W
HI

TE
 R

OCK

BA
UE

R

ASH

TO
O

LE

H
A

M
P

TO
N

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
AD

 1034

REGAL

PRIVATE
ROAD 5252

MANOR

RUSHING

TRAVIS
RANCH

CHISHOLM

MURDOCH

SARA

JANNA

WYOMING

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

PE
C

AN
G

R
O

VE

S
P

U
R

G
IN

TR
AC

TO
R

LAGOGRANDE

DORIS

COVE
VIEW

LORRAINE HAMMERLY

G
O

LD
D

U
ST

CA
M

BR
ID

G
E

HICKORY HILL

C
IT

R
U

S

CORDERO

GOOSE

D
O

V
E

C
R

E
E

K

BO
N

H
AM

RIVER
OAKS

SO
APB

ER
R

Y

CO
BA

LT
BA

YO
U

VISTA
OAKS

LAKE

TEXOMA

AZURE

PEARL

CREEK

BEND

SOUTHRIDGE

PRIVATE ROAD 5487

BLOOM

RUBY

POCO

W
ILK

E
S

CEDAR
BEND

HORSEMAN

MARTHA

KARA

ELISA

MONTANA

C
H

O
IC

E

C
IM

AR
R

O
N

STONE
HINGE

G
R

U
EN

E

LO
ST

VA
LLEY

AFFIR
M

ED

AS
H

W
O

O
D

NOCONA

BL
AC

K
D

IA
M

O
N

D

MOSS RIDGE

PRADOVERDE

O
H

A
R

A

S
O

U
TH

V
IE

W

NORTHRIDGE

KI
N

G
SW

O
O

D

BENTWATER

BRISTOL

W
H

IS
P

E
R

IN
G

A
C

R
E

S

TI
M

B
E

R

MANOR

W
EN

D
Y

PRIVATE

ROAD

5211

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

PA
R

K

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

CAREY

H
O

LL
Y

HOLYOAK

MEZIER

SKY

G
R

AY

ESTATES

KEN
W

O
O

D

C
H

U
R

C
H

SEC
R

E
TAR

IAT

FOREST
BEND

M
A

N
 O

 W
A

R

GLENBROOK

LY
N

N

1219.986317

8023.641375

9063.871628

1331.647763

5548.663788

5529.211377

3852.90303

34869.55529

25212.520702

30070.56332

30070.56332

12807.949768

12631.150808
2853.581432

4067.85881

°
0 2,5001,250

Feet

LEGEND
CITY OF LUCAS

Floodplain

Lake_Lavon_FEMA

Roads

R2      SINGLE FAMILY- RURAL (2+ ACRES)

R1.5   SINGLE FAMILY - ESTATE (1.5+ ACRES)

R1      SINGLE FAMILY-LOW DENSITY (1 ACRE)

RHD  SINGLE FAMILY- HIGH DENSITY

ED      ESTATE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MH      MANUFACTURED HOUSING

C         COMMERCIAL

VC       VILLAGE CENTER

PUBLIC / SEMI-PUBLIC

PARK AND OPEN SPACE

March 16, 2017

R2

C

C

C

C



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

EXISTING�PROPERTY�LINE

PROPOSED�RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED�LOT�LINES

LOT�SETBACK�LIMITS

PROPOSED�PAVED�ROAD

APPROX.�FLOODWAY

LEGEND

1 LOT�ID

S
A

N
D

A
L

W
O

O
D

�T
R

A
IL

�D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
R

E
-Z

O
N

IN
G

�R
1

.5
�T

O
�R

1

7
2
3
7
/7

2
5
9
�E

�P
A

R
K

E
R

�R
D

L
U

C
A

S
,�

T
E

X
A

S
�7

5
0

0
2

A
B

S
�A

0
9

0
1

�T
R

A
C

T
�4

�&
�5

;�
A

B
S

�0
3

4
9

�T
R

A
C

T
�6

�&
�7

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
:�

3
R

�L
A

N
D

�P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
S

U
D

H
IR

�S
A

K
A

R
IA

�-
�2

1
4
-7

2
7
-6

1
8
1

2022-0535

R
E

-Z
O

N
IN

G
�E

X
H

IB
IT

A
1
0
/1

8
/2

2

SHEET

R
E

V
D

A
T

E

D
E

S
IG

N
�H

IS
T

O
R

Y

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L

�D
E

S
IG

N
�&

�I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

THIS�DRAWING�IS�THE�EXCLUSIVE�PROPERTY�OF�LR�ENGINEERING�AND�IS�PROTECTED�UNDER�COPYRIGHT.��THESE�RIGHTS�HAVE�BEEN�EXTENDED�TO�OUR�CLIENT�WHO'S��NAME�APPEARS�ON�THE�PLAN.��THE�USE�OF�THESE�PLANS��IS�LIMITED�TO��THE�SITE�FOR�WHICH�THEY�WERE�PREPARED�.��REPRODUCTION�OR�DISTRIBUTION�IS�EXPRESSLY�LIMITED�TO�SUCH�USE.�ALTERATIONS�BY�ANY�PARTY�OTHER�THAN�LRE�ARE�NOT�PERMITTED�MAY�VOID�RESPONSIBILITY.��NOTIFY�THIS�ENGINEER�IF�PLANS�APPEAR�TO�HAVE�BEEN�MODIFIED.

2
1

1
5

�T
E

A
K

W
O

O
D

�L
A

N
E

S
U

IT
E

�#
4

5
0

P
L

A
N

O
,�

T
E

X
A

S
��

7
5

0
7

5

F
IR

M
�#

�F
-1

5
6

5
2

P
H

O
N

E
�9

7
2

-9
6

4
-2

1
6

1

F
A

X
��

��
��

9
7

2
-9

6
4

-2
0

3
7

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
@

L
R

T
E

X
A

S
.C

O
M

1

100 50 0

SCALE:�1"�=�100'

13'

12'

24'��CONC.�PAVED�STREET

12'5' 5'

13'

50'�RIGHT-OF-WAY

50'�RIGHT-OF-WAY�WITH�24'�PAVED�STREET
NOT�TO�SCALE

(PAVEMENT�SECTION�SHALL�MEET

THE�CITY�OF�LUCAS�STANDARDS�OR

AS�RECOMMENDED�BY�GEOTECHNICAL�REPORT)

4:14:1 4:14:1

2% 2%

FM�2514�(PARKER�RD)

CL�SANDALWOOD�TRAIL

PROPOSED�RE-ZONING�R1.5�TO�R1

NOTES:

1.

2.

100

EXISTING�PROPERTY�LINE�BEARINGS�SHOWN�ARE�BASED�ON�SURVEY

TITLED�ZONING�EXHIBIT�PROVIDED�BY�BRUCE�GEER,�L.S.,�DATED�10/17/22.

SITE�DEVELOPMENT�SHALL�BE�IN�ACCORDANCE�WITH�CITY�OF�LUCAS

DEVELOPMENT�STANDARDS.

S
A

N
D

A
L

W
O

O
D

�T
R

A
IL



Item No. 04City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

December 15, 2022

Requester: City Secretary Erin Day

Agenda Item Request 

Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 1, 2022, City Council meeting.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Minutes of the December 1, 2022 City Council meeting

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation 

City staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.

Motion 

I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  D e c e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 2  

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

December 1, 2022 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Tim Johnson 
Councilmember David Keer 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Phil Lawrence (remote)  
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
Assistant City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director Scott Holden 
City Secretary Erin Day 

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm.  
 
Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 
 
Deborah Jacobs, 1415 Ford Lane, spoke in opposition to the McKinney Airport expansion. Mrs. 
Jacobs stated that her home is in the flight path should operations go forward. She asked the mayor 
if he was involved in any of the bond committees or advocacy groups that have been formed regarding 
this issue. She advised the noise will make the property value of her home decrease. She asked the City 
Council to start giving the public information about what is happening with the expansion. Mrs. Jacobs 
also spoke on culverts in the city. She asked for enforcement to start being done on the debris and 
high weeds in the culverts. Mayor Olk responded advising Mrs. Jacobs that he is on a bond committee 
for the expansion and that he will write a newsletter article to give the public some more information. 
Mayor Olk also gave Mrs. Jacobs information on how to report the city culverts that need attention. 
 
Community Interest 
 
2. Items of Community Interest 
 
Mayor Olk spoke on items of community interest including: 
 

 Donations for Holiday Donation Drive 
 Country Christmas 
 Lovejoy Fine Arts Festival 
 Service Tree Nominations 
 Community Waste Disposal procedures during the Christmas holiday 
 Collin County Future Mobility Plan Meetings 

 
 
 
 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  D e c e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 2  

Public Hearing - Cancelled 
 
3. Hold a Public Hearing to consider a request by David Lewis, on behalf of property 

owner 3R Land Properties L.C., to rezone four parcels of land on the north side of 
Parker Road from Residential 1.5 acres to Residential 1 acre, situated in the Lewis P. 
Turner Survey, Abstract No. 901, Tract 4, 2.280 acres and Tract 5, 3.9943 acres, and in 
the John Gray Survey, Abstract No. 349, Tract 6, 8.5 acres and Tract 7, 10.296 acres. 

 
The Public Hearing was cancelled. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
4. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the November 17, 2022, City Council meeting. 
 

B. Approval of Ordinance #2022-12-00961 amending the Code of Ordinances Chapter 
12, Article 12.03, Section 12.03.002 “Specific Speed Limits”. 

 
C. Approval of Ordinance #2022-12-00962 reinstating Ordinance #1974-11-00038 

which established the common boundary line between the City of Lucas, Texas and 
the City of Parker, Texas, and ratifying Ordinance #1998-04-00372 which repealed 
Ordinance #1998-01-0366 and amended Ordinance #1974-11-00038. 

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Johnson, 

to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 
to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda 
 
5. Consider approval of an application for a site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and a 

preliminary plat submitted by Dave Carter, on behalf of the owner NDC Holdings, LP, 
for Lucas Retail Addition, a retail center on a 1.619-acre tract of land in the William 
Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, situated in the City of Lucas, Collin County, 
Texas, located at 2695 McGarity Lane. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation detailing the retail space including 
location, landscape, site specifications, architectural plans for the building, and the preliminary plat. 
 
Council Comments  
Council concerns regarded the retention pond, drainage, screening behind detention pond, exit roads, 
and what kind of stores will be in the retail space. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, 

to approve the application for a site plan, landscape plan, elevations, and a preliminary 
plat submitted by Dave Carter, on behalf of the owner NDC Holdings, LP, for Lucas 
Retail Addition, a retail center on a 1.619-acre tract of land in the William Snider 
Survey, Abstract Number 821, situated in the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, 
located at 2695 McGarity Lane. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  D e c e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 2  

6. Discuss proposed amendments to a development agreement with Younger Partners 
for property located at the northwest corner of Southview Drive and Parker Road. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation regarding the proposed changes to 
the property.  
 
Councilmember Lawrence disconnected from the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Council Comments 
Council expressed concerns regarding not enough commercial, existing infrastructure built for this to 
be a more commercial property, road configuration, and loss of sales tax. 
 
Councilmember Lawrence rejoined the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Tom Grunnah with Younger Partners, 14643 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas, spoke in response to 
questions from the City Council. He advised some of the developer’s concern is that if the area is 
more commercial, it is going to add to the traffic in the area. He introduced Matthew Smith with 
Vaquero Ventures, 2627 Tillar Street, Fort Worth, Texas, who spoke advising that the sales projections 
for the area are not high enough to support more retail. Mr. Smith advised that grocers want to see 
more residential behind the retail area.  
 
Councilmember Johnson asked Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn how much commercial 
acreage is on Angel Parkway. Mr. Hilbourn advised there is 22.9 acres on the Walmart tract, the storage 
facility area is 6.47 acres, the Shipley tract is 28 acres, and Paxton tract is 85 acres. Mr. Smith advised 
that Parker Road carries too much traffic to have that much commercial area. 
 
Mr. Grunnah advised that the area is unique with Lucas being a high-quality town. However he advised 
that the volume that it takes to support that amount of retail is not on the corner of land in question.  
 
Mayor Olk advised Mr. Grunnah and Mr. Smith to come back with demographics on their statements 
so the Council can be informed on the specifications. Councilmember Fisher advised that there are 
no mixed-use residential areas in the city and that no propositions should include mixed-use. 
Councilmember Lawrence advised the developer should come back when they have more information 
and a better plan in place. Mayor Pro Tem Peele advised that there has not been an issue in the past 
with selling larger lots and that should not be a concern to the developer. 
 
Steven Smith with Frasier Capital, 17250 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas, spoke highlighting that since 
the previous time this property was discussed with City Council, the developer and engineers have 
worked to try to make a plan that the City Council would be happy with. Councilmember Baney asked 
for the north end of Lucas to be taken into account in terms of lot sizes and to use that as an example 
of the vision the Council has for the city. Mayor Pro Tem Peele and Councilmember Baney advised 
the developer to come back with larger lots and more commercial. Councilmember Johnson asked if 
some of the residential traffic dumping out onto Southview Drive could be redirected to Parker Road, 
or if there could be two different entrances. Matthew Smith advised they could work with the city to 
get that done.  
 
The developer was directed to come back to Council with a new proposition with more retail and 
larger lot sizes. 
 
MOTION: There was no motion needed for this item. 



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  D e c e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 2  

 
7. Consider a request by Preston Walhood, on behalf of Young Dean Homestead, Ltd., 

for a preliminary plat for Dean Estates on a parcel of land consisting of 44.185 acres, 
located in the John McKinney Survey, Abstract Number 596, creating 27 single-family 
lots and two common spaces on the east side of Stinson Road, approximately 55 feet 
south of the roundabout. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation highlighting the location, current 
zoning, requested zoning changes, and proposed preliminary plat. 
 
Council Comments 
Council comments included: if there is land buildable by the detention pond, whether the detention 
pond may become the responsibility of the city if the homeowner’s association were abandoned, and 
whether people will start putting trash in the detention pond causing a drainage issue. Mayor Olk 
advised the abandonment of the homeowner’s association is a bigger issue that the Council can discuss 
at a later time. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Mayor Olk, to approve a 

request by Preston Walhood, on behalf of Young Dean Homestead, Ltd., for a 
preliminary plat for Dean Estates on a parcel of land consisting of 44.185 acres, located 
in the John McKinney Survey, Abstract Number 596, creating 27 single-family lots 
and two common spaces on the east side of Stinson Road, approximately 55 feet south 
of the roundabout. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote. 

 
8. Consider the final draft of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan and set the 

public hearing dates for January 12 and January 19, 2023. 
 
The City Council suggested the following revisions: 
 

 Update tax rate to reflect the current year. 
 Revise the Zoning Map in the key to correctly reflect the colored sections. 
 Change the Future Land Use Map to reflect areas in conflict with current zoning. 
 Change colors in Zoning Map so that the colors are more distinctive. 
 Update roads on the Future Land Use Map to reflect recent changes and change the type on 

roads where appropriate to reflect Council’s suggestions. 
 Revise typographical errors and remove sections that are outdated. 

 
The mayor directed for the changes to be made and staff to send the revised pages to the Council to 
review before the public hearing date. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Keer, to 

approve final draft of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Plan and set the public hearing 
dates for January 12 and January 19, 2023. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 
0 vote. 

 
9. Discuss establishing logo usage guidelines for the City of Lucas logo and 

provide direction to the City Manager. 
 
Mayor Olk advised he believes the City should not have a policy and only act if there is an issue with 
the usage. City Manager Joni Clarke advised she would monitor the usage and ensure the proper use. 



5 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  
  D e c e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 2  

Councilmember Lawrence asked if Ms. Clarke needed to issue a cease and desist order if it would have 
to come to Council to be approved. City Attorney Joe Gorfida advised that she would not.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Fisher, to deny 

establishing logo usage guidelines for the City of Lucas logo. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 6 to 1 vote, with Councilmember Keer voting against. 

 
10. Consider board appointments to the Parks and Open Space Board for a two-

year term beginning on January 1, 2023 and expiring on December 31, 2024. 
 
City Council Liaison to the Parks and Open Space Board Tim Baney recommended the following: 
 

 Reappoint Christel Parish 
 Move Laura Giles from Alternate 1 to a voting member 
 Move John Elliott from Alternate 2 to Alternate 1 
 Appoint Joan Phillips as Alternate 2 

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, to 

reappoint Christel Parish and appoint Joan Phillips as Alternate 1 to the Parks and 
Open Space Board, and to move Laura Giles from Alternate 1 to a voting member 
and move John Elliott from Alternate 2 to Alternate 1, for a term beginning on January 
1, 2023 and expiring on December 31, 2024. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 
to 0 vote. 

 
Executive Agenda 
 
11. Executive Session: As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, 

the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the 
Texas Government Code. 

 
An Executive Session was not held during the meeting. 
 
12. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the 

Executive Session. 
 
13. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting at 8:44 pm. The motion passed unanimously by 
a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
APPROVED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Mayor Jim Olk       Erin Day, City Secretary 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

December 15, 2022 
Requester: Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) intersection improvement project 
located at FM 1378 at FM 3286 (commonly referred to as the Bait Shop Intersection). 
 
Background Information  
 
In May 2017, the City became an active participant in the planning for improvements by entering 
into an agreement with Collin County for the purchase of 2.194 acres of land (Lucas Corners Tract) 
on the north side of Lucas Road. The City’s cost was $300,000, and the land was held in Collin 
County’s name. This was a proactive step to assist TxDOT in securing the necessary right-of-way 
for the project. 
 
In July 2020, the City was contacted by members of the TxDOT Right-of-Way Division requesting 
that the City enter a Local Public Agency (LPA) Agreement. The Bait Shop Intersection project 
will have 11 parcels, and an estimate by TxDOT shows that the City’s 10% participation cost 
(Texas Administrative Code: (43 TAC § Local Governments to contribute to the State funding 
participation for the cost of acquiring the right of way and relocating or adjusting utilities for the 
proper improvement of the State Highway System) is $129,517.60.   
 
On August 20, 2020, the City Council took no action on this item until a meeting with TxDOT 
could be arranged. On September 17, 2020, Collin County Area Engineer Jennifer Vorster, PE 
provided information to the Lucas City Council regarding TxDOT’s design. Ms. Vorster is 
responsible for all TxDOT work within Collin County. 
 
This project is anticipated to be scheduled to go to bid in May 2023. TxDOT has acquired all right-
of-way, completed 95% construction plans, and existing utilities are currently being relocated. 
 
The City of Lucas is being required to relocate a 12-inch waterline to accommodate TxDOT’s Bait 
Shop Intersection project. The City is waiting on the permit to be issued and the project is ready 
to go out to bid.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
This is a TxDOT project, and the following funding has been provided by the City of Lucas: 
 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

December 15, 2022 
 

 10% of right-of-way acquisition cost = $129,518 (2019 CO FY 2019-2020) 
 Land acquisition with Collin County for 2.194-acre tract = $300,000 (Reserves FY 2016-

2017). The City of Lucas also received proceeds from land sale to TxDOT = $248,093 (3/8 
of $661,581 – split with Collin County) 

 
The City of Lucas is also required to relocate a 12-inch water line. The City acquired the services 
of Huitt-Zollars, Inc. in January 2021. The design budget is $107,875, of which $94,219 has been 
spent as of December 5, 2022. The construction budget is $1,134,546 which includes a 10% 
contingency. 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion needed for this item. 



Item No. 06City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

December 15, 2022
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Executive Session: 

As authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene 
into closed Executive Session to deliberate the appointment of a member to the Board of 
Adjustment. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code. 

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation  

NA

Motion 

NA



Item No. 07City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request

December 15, 2022
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request 

Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session.

Background Information 

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA

Recommendation  

NA

Motion 

NA


	Agenda
	Item 1 - Citizen Input
	Item 2 - Items of Community Interest
	Item 3 - Public Hearing Parker Road
	Item 4 - Consent Agenda
	Item 5 - Bait Shop Intersection
	Item 6 - Executive Session



